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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To,
The Members of
Prime Infrapark Private Lid.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PRIME INFRAPARK PVT. LTD,
(“the Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)" with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes the maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditin
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section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the company as at 31% March 2016 and
its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date:

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements:

a) Refer Note 27 in the financial statement which states that the Company has
accumulated losses to the extent of Rs. 75.03 crores and its Net worth has been fully
eroded. However, the financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a
going concern basis for the reasons stated in the said Note.
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Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements As required by the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account, as required by law, have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books.

c. The company does not have any branches.

d. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

e. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014(as amended).

f. The matter described in sub-paragraph (a) under the Emphasis of Matters paragraph
above with Clause vii (a) and viii of Annexure A attached hereto, in our opinion, may
have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

g. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March,
2016, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on 31 March, 2016, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)
of the Act.

h. There is no qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith.

i. with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we giyes
Report in "Annexure B'.
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J. With respect to the other matters included in the Auditor's Report and to our best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us :

i. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses

iii.there were no amounts which required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co LLP.
(Formerly Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No.: 104184W/W1000

S

&,
ch
Ashish Sheth

Designated Partner
M. No.: 107162
Place: Mumbai
Date: 27% May 2016

104184 W/
W 100075
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor’'s Report

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of Prime Infrapark Private Ltd.
(“The Company’) for the year ended 31% March, 2016. We report that:

i.  Inrespect of its fixed assets, the company did not have any tangible asset. Therefore,
the provisions of clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the

company.

ii. In respect of inventories, the Company did not have any Inventory during the
Financial Year 2015-16. Therefore, the provisions of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

iii.  Inrespect of loans, the company has not granted any loan to any company, firms or
other parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act. Therefore, the provisions of clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

iv. ~ The company has not given any loans, investments, guarantees, and security
covered under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
provisions of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

v.  In respect of Deposit, the company has not accepted any deposit under sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
framed thereunder. Therefore, the provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

vi. Maintenance of cost records and accounts are not prescribed by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act. Therefore,
the provisions of clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

vii.  In respect of statutory dues:
a. According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination on test check basis, undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service
Tax, duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues have not been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities
and there have been significant delays. According to the inforn -. on nr.f

Reg. Nao.
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were outstanding as at March 31, 2016 for a period of more than six months from
the date of becoming payable are as follows:
Nature Amount Due Date Date of Payment
16,043 | 07/05/2015 -
15492 | 07/06/2015 -
Tax Collected at Source 16,745 | 07/07/2015 -
15997 | 07/08/2015 .
16,885 | 07/09/2015

| 8235| 07/07/2015 R W
1,500 | 07/05/2015 -

1,400 | 07/08/2015 | . 1
3,72,500 |_07/08/2015 :
[ 3,135 | 07/09/2015 |

Tax Deducted At Source —

b. As per the information and explanations provided to us, there were no dues in
respect to income tax or sales tax or wealth tax or service tax or duty of customs
or duty of excise or value added tax or cess which were not deposited due to any
dispute.

viii.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has defaulted in repayment of following dues to the financial institutions and
banks during the year, which were paid before the Balance Sheet date.

' Name of FI Principal Interest Period of
Amount of Amount of defaults
| ) Defaults ~ Defaults
LIC Housing Finance Corporation 4.90,63, ??B 10,39,29,554 | 1to 10 days.

ix. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination on test check basis, we are of the opinion that the Company has used
term loans for the purposes for which they were raised. During the year, the
company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public office
(including debt instrument).

x. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, no
material fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

xi.  According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of an
overall demmalmn of tmuka nF atwunls of l:he anp.mv, no mﬂnaguldl
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xii.  According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not the
Nidhi Company. Therefore, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable
to the company.

xiii.  According to the information and explanation given to us, transactions entered into
by the company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards:

xiv.  The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.

xv.  According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him during the year.

xvi.  According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not
required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co LLP.
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Regn. No,: 104

/-J'C//
A
Agh'ish Sheth

Designated Partney =
M. No.: 107162

AWV T100075

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27" May 2016
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We were engaged to audit the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Prime
Infrapark Pvt. Ltd. ("the Company") as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contrel over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that ee of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Rep, Ng,
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No. 104184W

QR

Reg. No.
104184 w/

Ashish Sheth , 2

: W=\ W10007s
Designated Partner  \\%} :
M. No. 107162 N4

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27" May, 2016
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Prime Infrapark Private Limited
CIN : UDASA0DDL200IPTCI96317

Balance Sheet as at 31° March, 2016

Particulars Notes 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
[INR] (INR)
L EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholder's Funds
{a) Share Capital . 1,00,00.000 1.00,00,000
[b) Reserves and Surplus 3 (75.03,18.601) [52.47.96,279]
{74,03,18,601) (51,47,96,279)
(2) Non-Current Liabilities
[a) Long-term horrowings 4 2218346744 2,01,80,83,705
(k] Deferred tax labllities . -
(¢] Other Long term liabilities 5 8,34.19.740 7,60,70,462
(d} Long Term Provision . -
2,30,17,66,484 2,09,41,54,167
(3) Current Liabilities
{a) Short-term borrowings = -
(b) Trade payables [ 13,6025 3848 80238415
(] Other current labilities 7 128164785 14,6028 384
(d) Short-term provisions - -
26,41,90,633 22,62 66,799
Total Liabilities 1,82,56,38,515 1,80,56,24,687
IL.Assets
(1) Non-current assets
{a) Fixed assers )
(1) Tangible assets . -
(4] Intangible assets 1.66,76,78.970 1.68,75,13.036
166,76, 78970 1.68,7513036
[b) Mon-current investments o
(€] Deferred Tax Assets [Net) .
{d) Long term loans and advances 9 18186263 204,12320
(&) Other Non Current Assels 0 6.90,00,000 -
B,71.86,263 2,04,12,320
{2) Current asscts
{a) Current Investments -
(b} Inventories - '
(€] Trade receivables 11 1.06,75.015 3307427
(d) Cash & Cash Equivalent 12 22397711 6,12,17 887
&) Short-term loans and advances 13 241,19811 206,73.453
(N Other current assets 14 1,35.80,735 1,25.00,563
7.07,73,282 9,76,99,331
Total Assels 1825638515 1.80,56,24,687

Significant Accounting Policies

Ag per our report of even date attached.
For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP
{Farmerly Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co.)
Chartered Accountants.
Firm Reg No.: 104184

Aglfg;{ﬂl

Designated Partner fl :

Membership No.: 107162 -
Place : Mumbai \

Diate ; 27th May 2016

SWI006075

104184 W/
Wilooors /@

See accompanying notes to the financial statements,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ajit B. K i
Director

Sharad P. Deshpande
Director




Prime Infrapark Private Limited
CIN : U45400DLZ009PTC196317

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31° March, 2016

Particulars Notes 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
(INR) (INR)
Revenue from operations 15 22,6447,744 18,72,02,237
Other Income 16 46,90,679 32,95,999
Total 23,11,38,423 19,04,98,236
Expenses:
Direct Expenses 17 5,81,36,364 7,25,88,433
Employee Benefit expenses 18 16,90,548 19,40,379
Financial costs 19 24,89,96,737 24,30,44,448
Depreciation and Amortization expense 20 1,98,34,066 1,77,34,612
Other expenses 21 5,77,55,030 2,52,73,640
Prior Period Expenses 22 7.02,48,000 1,85,00,000
Total 45,66,60,745 37,90,81,512
Profit / (Loss) before Tax (22,55,22,322) (18,85,83,276)
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax
(2) Deferred tax -
Profit / (Loss) for the year (22,55,22,322) (18,85,83,276)
Earning per Share 23
(1) Basic (225.52) (188.58)
(2) Diluted (225.52) (188.58)

As per our report of even date attached.
For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP
(Formerly Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co.)
Chartered Accountants.

Firm Reg No.: 104184W/W 18805

Ashig;éflﬁl

Designated Partner
Membership No.: 107162
Place : Mumbai

Date : 27th May 2016

104184 Wy
Wiloo07s

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ajit B. Kulkarni

Director

Place : Mumbai
Date : 27th May 2016

N

Director

P Deshpande
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31" March, 2016

Particulars

31.03.2016

31.03.2015

(INR)

(INK)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax and extraordinary items

Adjustment lor -

(22,55,22,322)

[18,8583,276)

Depreciation & Amortization 1.98,34,068 17734612
Finance Charges 24,89,96,737 24,230,449 448
Sundry Balance W/Off 367,843 (32.92.066)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 4.36,76,324 6,89,03,718
Adllustment for:
Long Term Advances 22.26,057 (1.69,24.877)
Trade receivables {73,67,587) 37.97,695
shart-term loans and advinces (38,144,200 1,13,41,989
Other Assets (7.00,80,172) (2,89.910)
Trade Fayables 55707434 21538926
Other Liabilities 3,13,67.640 {54,62,110)
Other Long term liabilites 13.49.278 16,91,012
29144773 84596435
Less: Direct Taxes Paid -
Net cash used in Operating Activities (a) 591.44.773 8,45,96,435
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENTING ACTIVITIES - -
Net cash used in Investing Activities (b) - -
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Long Term borrowings (Net) 15,10,31,798 16,16,51,996
Proceeds from Short Term borrawings [Net) - (1.60,609)
Finance Charges (24,89.96,737) (24,3044 448)
Net cash used in Financing Activities (c) [9.79,64,939) [8.15,53.062)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [a+

b+c) (3.88,20,166) 3043373

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents | 6.12.17 BBE7 58174514

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,2397.721 6,12,17,887

Notes ;

1. The above statement has been prepared in indirect method as described in AS-3 issued by ICAL

2. Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and Cash Equivalent 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Cagh In hand 6,380 5,540

Balance with Banks 2,23.91.341 61212347
Taotal 2,.23.97,721 6,12,17 887

For Javesh Sanghrajla & Co. LLP
{Farmerly Jayesh Sanghrajka & C
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No.: 104184W

104184 W/

Designated Partner WI00075

Membership Mo, 107162
Mace : Mumbal
Dare : 27th May 2016

Forand on behall of the Board of Directors

Ajit B, Ku i
Director

Place : Mumbai
Date : 27th May 2016

Sharad P. Deshpande
Director




PRIME INFRAPARK PVT. LTD.
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Corporate Information

Prime Infrapark Pvt. Ltd. (‘the Company’) is a company domiciled in India and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act. The company is an SPV of
Pratibha Industries Limited to undertake DMRC project of construction of Multi
Level Car Parking with Commercial Development at New Delhi Railway Station
cum Airport Terminal of Airport Express Line on BOT model. The company has
right to lease out the office premises and collect car parking charges and lease
rental for a period of thirty years including construction period,

1. Significant Accounting Policies:

A. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:
The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the
historical cost convention on accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with
the Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as
per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in
Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013. The operating cycle is assumed to be
12 months.

B. Use of Estimates:

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make assumptions, critical judgments and estimates, which it
believes are reasonable under the circumstances that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities on the date of the
financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the
period in which the results are known or materialized.

C. Intangible Asset:
Right to collect Lease rental and Car parking charges is stated at cost of
acquisition less accumulated amortization / depletion. All costs, including
finance costs and expenses incidental to acquisition attributable to the
intangible assets are capitalized.

Costs include upfront payment made to DMRC and all other incidental expenses
related to such acquisition. It also includes direct and indirect expenses on

construction of Car Parking & commercial Developmeny—sma=alied
infrastructure. These items are capitalized during the year gfi-formpted BN
constructions and commencement of right to collect Lease Rﬂfﬁ" & Far\Par 3
charges. '—ﬁ 104184 W/

WIo0075




D.

H.

PRIME INFRAPARK PVT. LTD.
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2016

Amortization:

Intangible asset i.e,, Lease Rental & Car Parking charges collection Right is
amortized over the period of concession, using revenue based amaortization
method. Under this methodology, the carrying value is amortized in the
proportion of actual lease revenue for the year to projected revenue for the
balance lease period, to reflect the pattern in which the asset's economic
benefits will be consumed. At each balance sheet date, the projected revenue
for the balance period is reviewed by the management. If there is any change in
the projected revenue from previous estimates, the amortization of Lease
collection rights is changed prospectively to reflect any changes in the
estimates.

Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs directly attributable and identifiable to the acquisition and
construction of qualifying assets are capitalized till the date such qualifying
assets are ready to be put to use. All other borrowing costs are expensed out,

Revenue Recognition
Lease rentals are recognized on accrual basis net of rebate, discounts and
service tax. Car parking charges are recognized on accrual basis.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets:

The company creates a provision when there is present obligation because of a
past event that will probably result in the outflow of resources and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate,
Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes.
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial
statements.

Earnings Per Share:

The basic and diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net profit
attributed to equity shareholders for the year, by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Prior Period Items:
Any income or expense which as per the Accounting Standard 5 is prior period
item is booked under the Prior Period Item. Prior period iten
separately in the profit and loss account so that their impa_uﬁ‘_ )
profit can be known. £

104184 W/
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Prime Infrapark Private Limited

CIN : U45400DLZ009PTC196317

Notes forming part of Financial Statements

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
[INH) L]
2 - Share Capital
AUTHORIZED CAPITAL
L0000 (2.Y. 100,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10-cach 100,000,000 100,000,000
100,000,000 100,000,000
I1S5UED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID P CAPITAL
PO 000 (1Y, 10.00,000) Egquity Shires of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 10,000,000 1000000
Total 10,000,000 10,000,000

Terms/Rights attached Lo equity shares
There 15 only one class of shares Le Equity shares,

| Eaity shares are having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per share.
{nn the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the company, alter distribution

| of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion o the number of equity shares held by the shareholders
|Reconciliation of the Number ol shares outstanding at the beginning and the end of the reporting period:

Farticulars 31" March 2016 n" March 2015

| No of Shares Amit in [INR] No of Shares Ami in [INR]
shores at Hoginning 1000000 10,000,000 1,000,000 1.000.000
Shtrey Bsued Durng the Year - - - =
Shares at the End 1,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000

Hetalls ol Shareholders (holding more than 5% in the company)

Nanze of Shareholder Asat 31" March, 2016

Asat 31" March, 2015

Number of % of Holding | Number of Shares Wi of Holding
Shures Held Held
Pratidiha Industries Limited 10,000,000 100%: 10,000,000 10} %:

[ company has pot ssued shares for consideration other than cash during past five years

e company has not sued bonus shares in last five years

As oer the records of the company, Including its register ol shareholders/mombers and other dedaration recetved from sharehalders regarding

[ 3 - Reserves & Surplus
|

Surplus in e Statement el Profit and Loss.

Balance us per last (inancial statement (524,796,279 [336,213.004)
Frafit / {Loss) for the year [225,522.442) {188,581 276)
{750,31H,601) {524, 796,279)
Tistal (750,318,601) [5Z4.796,279)
1 - Lung Term Borrowings
l+rm Loan
{upee Loan from Banks . LOG6,779.438
« Frorn Financial lnstitutions 1357 AG0.680 186519648
Lans & Advances From Related Parties BO0,H56,064 TH4,784.619
[Toml 2,218,346,744 2,018,083,705
The above amount includes
secured borrowings 1,357 440,680 1,253.299.685
Unsecured Borrowings BED,B56,064 ThTELELD
Laarantesd by Directors angd Others 1357490680 1,253,299 (384

jrersonal guarantee of promoter Directors.

4.1 Loan from financial institution carvies intérest at project LHPLE - 200 bps, The [oan is repayable in 120 monthly installments along with

imterest 11 secured by 1] assignment of rights under Concesslon Agreament for thee unexplred tenure, 2] charge over ¢

Charge pver present and futare recelvables 4] charge over rent & security deposits 5] corporate guarantee ui’Fr:mhw ﬂi’l
-

3] second
g ]

104184 Wy
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Prime Infrapark Private Limited

CIN : U45400DL2009PTC196317
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

Particulars 3032016 31032015
[INK) (INR)

5 - Other Long Term Liabilities
Security Deposits 8.34.19.740 7.60,70.462
Total B.34.19,740 7.60,70,462
6 - Trade Payable
Micro Small & Medium Enterprises® - .
Other Trade Payahles 13,60,25,848 HOZ38.415
Total 13,60,25,848 8,02,38.415 |

* The Detail of amount outstanding to Micro, Small and Mediam enterprises s given based on available infor

7 - Other Current Liahilities

maticn with the company.

Corrent matutities of long-term borrowings #597,56356
Withholding & other taxes payable 2.01,89.063
Security Deposits 2,79,839
Other Payables 17.14.500
Interest Accrued but not Due LGd 25027
Total 12 01,04,7 85

104184 wy
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13.89.87.596
31,445,522
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Prime Infrapark Private Limited
CIN : U45400DL2009PTC196317
Notes forming part ofFinancial Statements
03.2016 31.03.2015
Particulars Sy
(INR) {INR)
9 - Long Term Loans and Advances
Security Deposits - 2,160,000
Balance with statutory/ Government Authorities 18,186,263 18,252,320
Total 18,186,263 20,412,320
All sbove Loans and Advances are Unsecured and Considered Good
10 - Other Non Current Assets
Term Deposits with maturity more than 12 months 69,000,000
Total 69,000,000 -
Above term deposits are hypothecated against loan from Financial Institutions
11 - Trade Receivables
Outstanding for more than six months 99,696 5
Others 10,575,319 3.307.427
Total 1&,5{5.&15 3,307 427
All the above receivables are unsecured but considered good
12 - Cash & Cash Equivalent
Balances with banks:
- In current accounts 22391341 61,212,347
Cash on hand 6,380 5.540
Others
Total 22,397,721 61,217,887
13- Short Terms Loans and Advances
Security Deposits. 2.285,000 18,000
Other Loans & Advances
- Advances to suppliers . 7.496
- Balance with statutory/ Government Authorities 21,834,811 20,647,957
Total 24,119,811 20,673,453
All above Loans and Advances are Unsecured and Considered Good
14 - Other Current Assets
Prepaid Expenses 13,580,735 12,500
Total 13,580,735

104184 W/
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Prime Infrapark Private Limited
CIN : U45400DL2009PTC196317
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
(INR) (INR)
15 - Revenue From Operation
Operating Revenue
- tental & Parking Income 21,24,79,068 18,72,02,237
21,24,79,068 18,72,02,237
Other Operating Income 1,39,68,676
Total 22,64,47,744 18,72,02,237
16- Other Income
Interest income 46,90,679 3,933
Other Income - 32.92,060
Total 4690679 | 3295999
17 - Direct Expenses
DMRC Charges 5,81,36,364 7,25,88433
“Total 5,81,36,364 7,25,88,433
18 - Employee Benefit expenses
Contribution to PF & other fund 14,112 -
\Salaries & Wages 16,76,436 19,38,424
Staff Welfare Expenses 2 1,955
Total 16,90,548 19,40,379
19 - Financial Costs
Interest Expense 21,19,54,915 24,26,22,932
Oither Borrowing cost 3,70,41,821 4.21,516
Total 24,89,96,737 24,30,44,448
20 - Depreciation & Amortised Cost
5y RA :“\
Depreciation = Sy &\
. e 2 G
Amaortization 1,98,34,066 e Rl--;”)@_'}‘:&
=| 104184 wy IT
‘Total 1,98,34,066 ~\ WTTB3614
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Prime Infrapark Private Limited

CIN : U45400DL2009PTC196317
‘ Notes forming part of Financial Statements

Particulars | 31.03.2016 | 31.03.2015
|21 - Other Expenses

Auditors Remuneration 2,54,900 3.93,260
Commission & Brokerage Expenses 24,22,259 18,95,295
Iirectors Sitting Fees & Commission 30,000 =
Electricity Charges 2,91,36,848 1,37,45,860
General Expenses 3.,67,B43 2,65,971
Insurance Charges 12,469 9,55,904
Legal Fees & Professional Charges 212,492 6,08,730
Postage & Courier Charges 460 .
Printing & Stationery 9,989 .
Rates & Taxes 1,62,55,829 28,28,218
Rent 60,000 B5.000
Repairs & Maintenance - Office 89,80,022 44,31,853
Travelling & Visa Expenses 11,920 50,869
Telephone & Internet Expenses - 12,680
Total 5,77,55,030 2,52,73,640
* Auditor remuneration:

- Audit Fees 1,14,500 3,93,260
- Other service 1,40,400 -
Total 2,54,900 3,93,260
|22 - Prior Period Expenses
Lease Rent - 1,85,00,000
Property Tax 7,02,48,000 .
Total ?.ﬂ2,43!000 1,85,00,000
23 Earning per Share

1!—‘.-'uﬁtg‘ (Loss) after tax for calcuation of Basic &
Diluted EPS

Weighted average number of Equity shares
Basic & Diluted Earning per share

(22,55,22,322)
10,00,000
(225.52)

(18,85,83,276)

104184 Wy
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26.

Prime Infrapark PVT. LTD.
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2016

Contingent Liabilities & Commitment: Nil (P.Y. Nil)
Foreign Exchange Income/Expense: Nil (P.Y. Nil)
Related Party Disclosure:

As per the accounting standard 18 prescribed by the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
details of related parties & transactions with them are given below:

'Sr. | Name of Related Party Relationship
1| Pratibha industries Limited Holding Company
2 | Muktangan Developers Private Limited
3 | Pratibha Holding (Singapore) Pte. Ltd
4 | Pratibha Infra Lanka (Private) Ltd
(Wholly owned subsidiary of Pratibha Holding . . .
| (Singapore) Pte Limited) ASSIN Lt
|5 | Bhopal Sanchi Highways Pvt. Ltd. S ;’::;“”‘E‘n“t“ el
6 | Pratibha Shareholding Pvt. Ltd, pertag aneTISe
7 | Pratibha Heavy Engineering Ltd.
8 | Pratisheel Infra Solutions Pvt, Ltd. |
9 | Pratibha Membrane Filtering Systems Pvt, Ltd, |
[ 10 | Mr. Ajit Kulkarni Kev M ial P I
11 | Mr. Sharad P Deshpande B b il
Disclosure of related party transactions ) (Rs. in Lakhs)
| Particulars 2015-16 2014-15 |
& iv
_ Pratibha Industries Limited 960.72 274992
Closing Balance of Loans and Advances 8608.56 7,647.85 |

27. The company has accumulated losses amounting to Rs. 75,03,18,600 and its networth is
fully eroded. However, the financial statements have been prepared on Going Concern
assumption as the company has entered into Concession Agreement with DMRC on 1% April
2010 for a period of thirty years which gives Right to collect Lease Rental and Car Parking
charges. The management is hopeful to recover the losses in future.

28. There are no transactions under AS 4,5,9, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 19, 22, 26 and 28. Hence,
no disclosures under them are made.

29. Balance under the head ‘Trade Receivables’, ‘Trade Payables’ and ‘Deposits” are
shown as per books of accounts. They are subject to confirmation by concerned
parties and adjustment if any, on reconciliation thereof.

30. Inthe opinion of the Board of Directors, the Current Assets, Loans

value on realization in ordinary course of business at least equ#f tg
which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. Reg. No.

104 1'84 W
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Prime Infrapark PVT. LTD.
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2016

Additional Information pursuant to Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable and hence not disclosed.

Previous year figures have been restated, reclassified or regrouped wherever
necessary.

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co LLP. For & on Behalf of the Board
(Formerly Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

.qshish@.éf)o

Designated Partner
M.No.107162 .

Place: Mumbai

N

Mr.\jit B, Kulkarni Mr. Sharad P. Deshpande
Dire Director

104184 W/
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Place: Mu

Date: 27t May, 2016 Date: 27*h May, 2016
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(/\ JAYESH SANGHRAJKA & CO. LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To,
The Members of
Muktangan Developers Pvt. Ltd.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Muktangan Developers Pvt.
Ltd., ("the Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes the maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing stand;
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the pro
the Act and the Rules made thereunder,

Rep. No
[O4 184 W/
WInnon7s
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(/\ JAYESH SANGHRAJKA & CO. LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
section 143(10) of the Act, except with regard to the matters set out below in Basis of
Qualified Opinion, where we have not been able to perform audit in conformity with
relevant auditing standards in the absence of sufficient appropriate evidence,. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
statements that give true and fair view in order to designaudit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, except with regard to the matters set
out below in Basis of Qualified Opinion, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified audit opinion on the financial statements,

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Reference is invited to Note No, 21 to the financial statements, which states that balances
under the head ‘Trade Payables’, Security Deposit' and "Loans and Advances’ are subject to
confirmation by concerned parties and adjustment if any, on reconciliation thereaf.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, except for the possible effects, which are not quantifiable, of the matters described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting prineiples generally accepted in India;

a. in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at

.1“5-11{}51-. Hind Hﬂr','l.‘i”'lﬂﬂ t:i..‘lll:j'ql-‘ DS, Phalke Rd, Dadar “:. Rh']. Mumbai 400 (ﬂ TN'L;'"I." i»,t#-a\',
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O\ JAYESH SANGHRAJKA & CO. LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

2016;

b. in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that
date; and

¢. in the case of the Statement of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year
ended on that date;

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements As required by the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order"), issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and except for the possible effects of the matters described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

b) except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, proper books of account, as required by law,
have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of those
books.

¢} The company does not have any branch.

d) the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

e) except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis of Qualified
Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

f] the matters described under the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph re:
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C/}& JAYESH SANGHRAJKA & CO. LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Clause vii{a) of Annexure A attached hereto, in our opinion, may have an adverse
effect on the functioning of the Company.

g) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March,
20186, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on 31 March, 2016, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)
of the Act.

h) There is no qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above connected herewith.

i) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in "Annexure B"; and

i) With respect to the other matters included in the Auditor’s Report and to our best of
our information and according to the explanations given tous :

i. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses

iiil,  there were no amounts which required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund.
For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No.;,104184W/W100075

AsNish Sheth __
Designated Partner !1:_-1 184 wy
M. No.: 107162 100075

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May, 2016
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor’'s Report

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of Muktangan Developers Pvt. Ltd.
(“The Company’) for the year ended 31 March, 2016. We report that:

i. in respect of its fixed assets:

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets on the basis of available
information.

b. As explained to us, the assets consist of only Land and Capital WIP. Hence no
physical verification is required.

c. the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.
i. in respect of inventories, as explained to us, the Company did not have any

Inventory during the year. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iii. in respect of loans, the company has not granted any loan to any company, firms or
other parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

iv. The company has not given any loans, investments, guarantees, and security
covered under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
provisions of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

v. In respect of Deposit, the company has not accepted any deposit under sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
framed thereunder. Therefore, the provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

vi. Maintenance of cost records and accounts are not prﬂ-scrihed h}- the Ce

ﬂ},} 404, Hind Rajasthan Centre, DS Phalke Rd, Dadar [C Rly.}, Mumbai 40,
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

the provisions of Clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

vil. In respect of statutory dues:

a. According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination, undisputed statutory dues which include Tax Deducted At Source
and Property Tax have not been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
amounts payable in respect thereof, which were outstanding as at March 31, 2016
for a period of more than six months from the date of becoming payable are as
follows:

Nature Amount Due Date
Tax Deducted At Source 1,500 07/09/2015

b. As per the information and explanations provided to us, there were no statutory
dues which were not deposited due to any dispute.

viii. The company has not taken loan from any financial institution or bank. Therefore,
the provisions of Clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the
Company. Further, company has not issued debentures.

ix. The Company has not taken any term loan. During the year, the company has not
raised money by way of initial public offer or further public office (including debt
instrument).

X. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, no
material fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

xi. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not paid
any managerial remuneration,

xii. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not the
Nidhi Company. Therefore, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable
to the company.
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

xiii. According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no
transactions entered into by the company with the related parties which are
covered under Sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013. Hence the provisions
of clause 3(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the company.

xiv. The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.

xv. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him during the year.

xvi. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co LLP.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No.: 1

Ashish Sheth
Designated Partner
M. No.: 107162

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27* May, 2016
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We were engaged to audit the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Muktangan Developers Pvt. Ltd. (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequac
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
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effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Reg. No. 104184W/W100075

Astrish Sheth
Designated Partner
M. No. 107162

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May, 2016

_ 405-408, Hind Rajasthan Centre, .8, Phalke Rd, Dadar (C Rly.), Mumbai 400014, Maharashtra
.l l ""l (‘ l B4 jayesh@isandeodn /W 40774600 (18 Lines) Website: wwwsandeodnfwww. batgach.com
a 'h( IS Branches at Kanjurmarg & Vashi
& Affiliates
AMetwork Asproved by ICA)



MUKTANGAN DEVELOPERS PVT. LTD.
CIN: U45200MH2005PTC153142
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
N
Particulars otes (INR) (INR)
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholder’s Funds
(a) Share Capital 2 40,00,000 40,00,000
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3 (28,689) -
39,71,311 40,00,000
(2) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 4 12,48,57,523 12,39,26,107
12,48,57,523 12,39,26,107
(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Trade payables 5 6,90,722 6,68,172
(b) Other current liabilities 6 7,11,250 687,914
14,01,972 13,56,086
Total Liabilities 13,02,30,806 12,92,82,193
ILASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets 7
(i) Tangible assets 4,04,95,838 4,04,95,838
(ii) Capital work-in-progress 7,91,70,941 7,82,22,328
11,96,66,779 11,87,18,166
(b) Non-current investments 8 7,12,500 7,12,500
(c) Long Term Loans and Advances 9 96,10.,640 96,10,640
12,99,89,919 12,90,41,306
(2) Current assets
(a) Cash and Bank Balance 10 2,18,388 2,18,388
(b) Short-term loans and advances 11 22,500 22,500
2,40,888 2,40,888
:Tﬂl:al Assets 3 13,02,30,806 12,92,82,193
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Regn. No: 104184\
Ashish Sheth Ajit Kulkarni RaviKulkarni
Designated Partner Director Director
MNa: 107162 DIN: 00220578 DIN: 00948406
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
(Date : 27th May, 2016 Date : 27" May, 2016




MUKTANGAN DEVELOPERS PVT, LTD.
CIN: U45200MH2005PTC153142
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31" March, 2016

Particulars Notes 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

(INR) (INR)

Revenue from operations

Total

Expenses:

Other expenses 12 28,689
Total 28,689
Profit Before Tax (28,689)

Less: Tax expense

- | Profit for the year (28,689) -
Earning per equity share: 13
(1) Basic (0.07)

(2) Diluted (0.07)

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even date attached.
For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants.

ICAI Firm Regn. No.: 1041B4W/W100075

"

Ashitsh Sheth _ Ajit K i RaviKalkarni

Designated Partner {I JF_:'-‘F- No Director Director

M No: 107162 |2l \Pd184 wy DIN: 00220578 DIN: 00948406
W\ Wlooors

Place : Mumbai
Date ; 27th May, 2016

Place : Mumbai
Date : 27th Mav, 2016




MUKTANGAN DEVELOPERS PVT. LTD.
CIN: U45200MHZ005PTC153142
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31" March, 2016

& 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Particula
Ly i (INR) (INR)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax (28.689) -
Adiustment for
Increase / [Decrease) in Other current labilities 23,336 55,128
Increase [/ [Decrease) in Trade payaliles 22,550 (1,12,538)
[Increase) / Decrease in Loans & Advance - -
17,197 (57,4107
Less: Direct Taxes Paid 3 %
Net cash used in Operating Activities 17,197 (57,410)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addition to Capital WIP [9.48.613) (11,32.434)
(9,48,613) (11,32,434)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Additional to Long term borrowing 931416 1251,162
931,416 12,51,162
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - 61,318
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 218388 1,57.070
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,18,388 2,18.388

MNotes :

2. Cash and Cash Equivalent

L. The above statement has been prepared in indirect method as described in AS-3 issped by ICAL

Cash and Cash Equivalent 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Cash in hand B.510 8310
Balance with Banks 209878 209878
Total 2,18,388 2,18,388

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
LCAT Firm Regn. Now: 10

ish Sheth
Designated Partner

M No: 107162

Place ; Mumbai

Date : 27th May, 2016

Director
DIN: DD220578
Place : Mumbai

Date : 27th May, 2016




MUKTANGAN DEVELOPERS PVT. LTD.
CIN: U45200MH2005PTC153142

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2016

Corporate Information

Muktangan Developers Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a company domiciled in
India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act. The company is
engaged to carry on business of development of Land and Real Estate and dealing
in properties both commercial and residential.

1.

A.

E.

Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the
historical cost convention on accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with
the Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as
per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule
111 to the Companies Act, 2013, The operating cycle is assumed to be 12 months.

Use of Estimates:

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make assumptions, critical judgments and estimates, which it
believes are reasonable under the circumstances that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities on the date of the
financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the
period in which the results are known or materialized.

Fixed Assets:

Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition, including any attributable cost for
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss.

Capital Work-In-Progress is stated at the amount expended on construction and
incidental expenses up to the date of Balance Sheet.

Investments:

in the opinion of the management.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets:




MUKTANGAN DEVELOPERS PVT. LTD.
CIN: U45200MH2005PTC153142
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 315 March, 2016

estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.
Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes.
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial
statements.

F. Earnings Per Share:
The basic and diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net profit
attributed to equity shareholders for the year, by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period.
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MUKTANGAN DEVELOPERS PVT. LTD.
CIN: U45200MH2005PTC153142
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as on 31" March, 2016

31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Particul
s (INR) (INR)
2 - Share Capital
AUTHORIZED CAPITAL
4.00,000 (P.Y.4,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- Each 40,00,000 40,00,000

40,00,000 40,00,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL
4,00,000 (P.Y .4,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- Each, fully paid-up 40,00,000 40,00,000

Total 40,00,000 40,000,000

2.1 Reconciliation of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
No of Shares | Amount (Rs) | NoofShares | Amount (Rs)
Number of Shares at the beginning 4,000,000 40,00,000 4,00,000 40,00,000
Add:- Number of Shares Issued & S = :
Number of Shares at the end 4,00,000 40,00,000 4,00,000 40,00,000

2.2 The company has only one class of shares, namely Equity Shares

2.3 Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

2.3.1 Equity shares are having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share.

2.3.2 In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

2.4 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

31.03.2016 31.03.2015

1
Particulars No of shares % No of shares Yo

Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
- M/s Pratibha Industries Limited 4,00,000 100% 4,00,000 100%;

2.4.1 As per the records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declaration
received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and
beneficial ownership of shares.

2.5 The company has neither issued any bonus shares nor any shares pursuant to contract without payment
being received in cash during preceding five years. It has also not bought back any shares during these Vears.

3 - Reserves & Surplus

surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance as per last financial statement \ “OHRAZE

Profit / {Loss) for the year [za.a%m
.

Total (28,689) r:l?:-.ltw-.'

%




MUKTANGAN DEVELOPERS PVT. LTD.
CIN: U45200MH2005PTC153142

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as on 31% March, 2016

4 - Long Term Borrowings

u a r

Pratibha Industries Limited 12,4857,523 12,39,26,107

Total 12,48,57,523 | 12,39,26,107

Refer note number 17 for Related party transactions.

5 - Trade Payables

Micro Small & Medium Enterprises® - -

Other Trade Payables 690,722 ,68,172
6,90,722 6,608,172

* The Detail of amount outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises is given based on available information with

the company,

6 - Other Current Liabilities

Security Deposits 499,662 499,662
Withholding & other taxes payable 191234 1,52,349
Other Payables 20,354 35,503
Total 7,11,250 6,87,914
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MUKTANGAN DEVELOPERS PVT. LTD.
CIN: U45200MH2005PTC153142
Notes forming part of Financial Statements As On 31" March, 2016
Particitais 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
(INR) (INR)
8 - Non Current Investment
Non Trade Investments
Unquoted Equity Instruments
71,250 (P.Y. 71,250) Equity shares of Janakalyan Sahakari 7,12,500 7,12,500
Bank Ltd of Rs.10 Each, Fully Paid Up
Total 7,12,500 7,12,500
“*- Long Terms Loans and Advances
Retention & Security Deposits. 96,10,640 96,10,640
Total 96,10,640 96,10,640
10 - Cash & Bank Balance
Balances wit nks:
- In current accounts 2,09,878 2,09,878
Cash in Hand 8,510 8,510
Total 2,18,388 2,18,388
l_l - Short Terms Loans and Advances
Advances to Suppliers 22,500 22,500
22,500




MUKTANGAN DEVELOPERS PVT. LTD.
CIN: U45200MH2005PTC153142
Notes forming part of Financial Statements As On 31* March, 2016

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
(INR) (INR)
12 - Other Expenses
Rates and Taxes 2,239 -
Consultancy Charges 16,450 -
Auditor Remuneration
- Statutory Audit 10,000
Total

13- Earning Per Share

28,689 -

Profit / (Loss) after tax for calculation

of Basic & Diluted EPS (28,689) -
Weighted average number of Equity sha 4,00,000 4,00,000
Basic & Diluted Earning per share ' (0.07) -
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19.
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MUKTANGAN DEVELOPERS PVT. LTD.
CIN: U45Z00MH2005PTC153142
Notes forming part of Financial Statements As On 31st March, 2016

The Company is a whole owned subsidiary of Pratibha Industries Limited.
Contingent Liabilities & Commitment: Nil (P.Y. NIL)
Foreign Exchange Income & Expense: Nil (P.Y. NIL)
Related Party Disclosure:
As per the accounting standard 18 prescribed by the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, details of related parties & transactions with them are given below:
Sr. Name of Related Party Relationship ]
No. ==
P_ 1. | Pratibha Industries Limited Holding Company
2. | Prime Infrapark Pvt. Ltd
' 3. | Pratibha Holding (Singapore) Pte. Ltd
4. | Pratibha Infra Lanka (Private) Ltd |
(Wholly owned subsidiary of Pratibha
Holding (Singapore) Pte Limited)
5. | Bhopal Sanchi Highways Pvt. Ltd.
6. | Saudi Pratibha Industries Limited ,
7. | Pratibha Heavy Engineering Ltd. L o
8. | Elegant Infrastructure & Real Estate Pvt. Ltd. Mmgfglﬁ: IE_;: tﬁ;pnses.
9. | Pratibha Shareholding Pvt. Ltd. . y
: 2R Managerial Personnel
10. | Pratibha Developers Pvt. Ltd. 76 Able b5 prereice
11. | Pratibha Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. i iiﬁcant inﬂiunce
12. | Spark Infra Solutions Private Limited &
13. | Celestial Consultancy Service Private Limited
14. | Acme Infrastructure Management And
Consultancy Services Private Limited
| 15. | Pratibha Membrane Filtering Systems Pvt.
Ltd.
‘ 16. | Pratisheel Infra Solution Pvt, Ltd, ‘
| 17. | Anand Kulkarni Ventures Pvt. Ltd. | _
| 18, | Mr. Anand A, Kulkarni ‘ |
19. | Mrs. Samidha A. Kulkarni Key Managerial
20. | Mr. Ajit B. Kulkarni Personnel
‘ 21. | Mr. Ravi A. Kulkarni o | -
Details of transactions during the vear: _ .
Particulars 2015-16 2014-15 |
Holding Co.
Loans received
Pratibha Industries Ltd 9,31.416 12,51,162 |
There are no disclosures under AS 4, 5,9, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 19,22, 26 and 28.
In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Current Assets, Loans & Adva Ees
value on realization in ordinary course of business at least equal to th 4
which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. Sl jeata <
- o _ 2\ Wl1o007s
The Management is of the opinion that the investment would realize at t

alue not

less than book value on disposal and accordingly no provision for diminutios
of investment is made,




MUKTANGAN DEVELOPERS PVT., LTD.
CIN: U45200MH2005PTC153142
Notes forming part of Financial Statements As On 31st March, 2016

21. Balances under the head ‘Trade Payables’, 'Security Deposit’ and 'Loans and
Advances’ are subject to confirmation by concerned parties and adjustment if any, on

reconciliation thereof.

22.  Additional Information pursuant to Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not

applicable and hence not disclosed.

23.  Previous year figures have been restated, reclassified or regrouped wherever

necessary.

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co LLP.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No.: 104184W/W 100075

Ashish Sheth
Designated Partner || %
M.No.107162 \*

Reg, No.
[O4 TR Wy
wWlgoors

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27tk May, 2016

For & on Behalf of the Board

Mr. Ajit
Director
DIN:00220578

Director
DIN: 00948406

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27t May, 2016




MUKTANGAN DEVELOPERS PVT. LTD.
Trial Balance for the year ended 31st March 2016
G/L Name Amount
8011001 |FA-Land 40495838
B025751|Capital Work in Progress 7.91,70,941
8121016|5hare of [anakalyan Sahakari Bank Lud, 7.12,500
8230128|Cash Book - Muktangan (JV) 8,510
8246000]Corporation Bank CBCA/01/000032 Main 1,.02.231
8246001 |Corporation Bank CBCA/01/000032 Incoming 14.51,590
B246002{Corporation Bank CBCA/01/000032 Outgoing -14,51,590
8246010{lanakalyan Sahakari Bank Ltd 2464 - Main 1.07.647
8261013]Advance - Expenses 22,500
B262010|Deposit - TLD 95,78.240
8262129 Deposit - MCOM Other 32,400
8264024|Praubha Industries Ltd -12,48,57,523
7110000|Equity Share Capital -40,00,000
7310006|Security Deposit - Sub Con -4,99,662
7320013{0utstanding Liability -3,500
7330018|Wages & Salary Payable 0
7330027|Consultancy Charges Payable -16,854
7330044 |Property Tax Payahle -1,88,734
7330051|M L W F (Payable) 1]
7340004{TDS on Contractors Section Code 194¢ [Others) 1]
7340011|TDS on Prof/Tech. Service Section Code 194] (Compa -1,500
7340012 TDS on Prof/Tech. Service Section Code 194] (Other -1,000
7350002 |Vendor - Sub Contractor 0
7350003 |Vendors - Expenses -4,37,559
7350013|Vendors - Service Tax -2,53,163
1002029 Reinforcement Steel - Consumption A/c 4.48,312
1015020|Customer Delevery Consuption A/c Without Cost Elem -4.48,312
3042040]Service Tax 2,100
3053000| Electricity Charges 0
3056000]Consultancy Charges 26,450
3222110]Interest on Tds 139
3160001 Salary A/c ~ 0
and on behalf of the Board ( I‘/

AjitK rni RaviK rni

Director Directo

DIN: 00220578 DIN: 00948406

Place : Mumbni

Date : 27th May, 2016
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CHABTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Bhopal Sanchi Highways Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bhopal Sanchi Highways (P)
Ltd. ("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The management and Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the matters
stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the act’) with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under

Section 143(10) of the Act Those Standards require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
. Whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement

fay & \An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
e L a:g disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the

\ f_‘-‘_h _ auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
.« _the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
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assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's
preparation of the financial statements, that give a true and fair view, in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such
controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's
management and Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
Emphasis of Matter
6, We draw attention to Note No, 9 & Note No. 23 regarding the termination of the road

construction project awarded to the company by NHAIL The company has a claim for
compensation in respect of the same, which the company is certain of recovering and
hence no provision in respect of the same has been made. The matter is under
arbitration. Pending settlement of the same the company is of the view that the going
concern status is not impaired.

Our report is not qualified in respect of the matters stated above.

Opinion

7.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31* March 2016, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 (“the order”)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the Act, we give in Annexure - “A" a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books:

the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the applicable Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014



e.

on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2015, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2015, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we
give our separate report in “Annexure - B”,

With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) As per the best estimates made by the management on the basis of opinion
taken, the Company is of the view that the ongoing litigations as at the reporting
date would not have a material impact on its financial position;

i) Based upon the assessment made by the company, there are no material
foreseeable losses on its long term contracts that may require any provisioning.

iii) In view of there being no amount(s) required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit the reporting under this
clause is not applicable.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Regn No. 302014E

M. No. 065025

Place : Mumbai
Date :
f 5 i \:\_.\
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors Report
Referred to in para 7 of our report of even date, to the members of Bhopal Sanchi
Highways Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2016

(1)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) There is a phased programme for verification of fixed assets, which in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of
its assets. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) The company does not have any land as its assets.

The inventory has been physically verified during the period by the management. In
our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. During the year, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the reporting requirements under sub-
clause (a), (b) and (c) of Clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, In respect
of loans, investments and guarantees, the company has complied with the provisions of
Section 185 and 186 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. Consequently,
the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76
of the Act and the rules framed thereunder are not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. Hence, the reporting
requirements under clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.



(vii)

(viii)

(ix]

(x)

(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

a)  According to the records of the company, statutory dues like investor education
protection fund, employees’ state insurance, wealth tax, service tax, custom duty,
excise duty, cess and other statutory dues are not applicable to the company; as
regards the applicable statutory dues, the company has not been regular in payment
of TDS, WCT, labour cess, professional tax, etc. The details of statutory dues payable

_for a period of more than six months as at the balance sheet date is as under:

Nature of Dues Amount (in Rs.)
Professional Tax 6,312 ”
Income tax for the FY 2014-15 - 95,778

Works Contract Tax / VTA | 36,87,782
Tax Deducted at Sources 96,481
Labour Cess ] 41,96,763

Further, in certain cases the company has failed in deducting the TDS and labour
cess from the bills of the contractors.

b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no applicable
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

Based on the audit procedures carried out by us and on the basis of the information
and explanations provided by the management we are of the opinion that the company
has not been regular in repayment of interest and dues to banks. As at the reporting
date, interest amounting to Rs. 80.82 Lacs due to banks for the month of Feb and March
are yet to be paid. Further, the company has not paid the instalment for the full year
amounting to Rs. 1023.25 Lacs for the term loan availed by it. The company does not
have any borrowings from financial institutions / government / debenture holders.

Read along with Note 9 & 23, we report that based on the information and explanation
provided to us, we are of the opinion that the term loan taken by the company have
been ultimately utilized for the purpose for which they were taken. Further, the
company has not raised any funds by way of initial / further public offer,

Based on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpose of reporting the true
and fair view of the financial statements and as per the information and explanations
given to us by the management, we report that we have neither come across any
instance of fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or employees,
noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the
management

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not paid
any managerial remuneration during the year and hence the reporting requirements
under clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements under
clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into
by the company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 178 of the
Act where applicable and the details thereof have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under audit.

,{"‘T"_r} T



(xv)  As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not required to be registered under Section 45 - A of the Reserve Bank of
India, 1934,

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn No. 302014E

D) i A

f

A ( Narendra Khandal
Partner
M. No. 065025

Place: Mumbai
Date:



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors Report
Referred to in para 8 of our report of even date, to the members of Bhopal Sanchi
Highways Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2016

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bhopal Sanchi
Highways Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controis Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E

M*’w{fﬁ.

Narendra Khandal
artner
M No. 065025

Place : Mumbai A SN



BHOPAL SANCHI HIGHWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED

Note No, 1 - Background and Significant Accounting Policies

{a) Background

The Company was incorporated under the Companies Act 1956 on June 29, 2010, vide
Registration No U45200DL2010PTC204952.

The company has been formed for the business of construction of 2 laning with paved
shoulders of Bhopal - Sanchi section of NH-86 to be executed under the Build, Operate and
Transfer (BOT) model, awarded by National Highways Authority of India (NHAI) and also to
undertake such ancillary works and other assignments / contracts as may be assigned by
NHAI in connection to the project.

(b) Significant Accounting Policies

1.

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in India, the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and applicable accounting standards referred to
in the Companies Act, 2013. All income and expenditure having a material bearing on the
financial statements are recognised on an accrual basis.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including
current liabilities) as of the date of the financial statements, the reported income and
expenses during the reporting period and disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Fixed Assets / Capital Work in Progress and Depreciation

a. The Company capitalises all costs relating to acquisition and installation of fixed
assets. Expenses incurred on the Bhopal Sanchi Road include direct and attributable /
allocated indirect expenses incurred including for procurement of land / cost of
construction of toll plazas, bridges, culverts, equipment and other related  expenses
incurred prior to the commissioning. Assessment of indication of impairment of an
asset is made at the year end and impairment loss, if any, is recognised.

b. Depreciation on the project post completion would be allocated on the basis of the
proportion of the toll collected to the toll collectible over the period of the project.

Impairment of Assets

The carrying values of assets of the Company’s cash-generating unit are reviewed for
impairment annually or more often if there is an indication of decline in value. If any
indication of such impairment exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are
estimated and impairment loss is recognised, if the carrying amount of those assels
exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net
selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the estimated
future cash flows to their present value based on appropriate discount factor.



5.

BHOPAL SANCHI HIGHWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs incurred in respect of borrowings specifically made towards
construction of the Project assets are treated as a part of Capital Work in progress for
subsequent capitalization as on commencement of commercial operations of the road.
Borrowing costs incurred subsequent to the capitalisation date are charged to the Profit
and Loss statement.

Taxes on Income

Taxes include taxes on the Company’s taxable profits, adjustment attributable to earlier
periods and changes in deferred taxes. Valuation of all tax liabilities / receivables is
conducted at nominal amounts and in accordance with enacted tax regulations and tax
rates or in the case of deferred taxes those that have been substantially enacted.

Deferred tax is calculated to correspond to the tax effect arising when final tax is
determined. Deferred tax corresponds to the net effect of tax on all timing differences,
which occur as a result of items being allowed for income tax purposes during a period
different from when they were recognised in the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets are recognised with regard to all deductible timing differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible
timing differences can be utilised. When the Company carries forward unused tax losses
and unabsorbed depreciation, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there
is virtual certainty backed by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which deferred tax assets can be realised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced by the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or a part of the aggregate deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding
retirement benefits) are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on
best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statement. A contingent asset is neither recognised nor disclosed.

Revenue Recognition

The Concession Agreement envisages Revenue in the form of Annuity of a fixed sum on
pre-determined dates (not more than twice a year). The Annuity payment will start
accruing to the Company after the Commercial Operation Date ("COD"). As the Project is
still under pre-operative stage, no revenue has been recognised.



9.

10.

11.

12.

BHOPAL SANCHI HIGHWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax for the year
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax for the year
attributable to equity shareholders of the company by the weighted number of equity
shares determined by assuming conversion on exercise of conversion rights for all
potential dilutive securities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and bank balances, and current investments that have insignificant risk of change in
value, which have duration of up to three months, are included in the Company’s cash and
cash equivalents in the Cash Flow Statement.

Cash Flow Statements

The Cash Flow Statement Is prepared in accordance with “indirect method” as prescribed
in the Accounting Standard (AS) 3 on “Cash Flow Statements”.

Current/Non-Current Assets and Liabilities:

Assets are classified as current when it satisfies any of following criteria:
e Itisexpected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date,
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded,
¢ Itis Cash or cash equivalent unless it restricted from being exchanged or used
to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
All other assets are classified as Non-current.

Liabilities are classified as current when it satisfies any of following criteria:
e [tis expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date,
o [tis held primarily for the purpose of being traded,
¢ The company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as Non-current.



T BHOPAL SANCHI HIGHWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS ON 315t March 2016

[« ¥ | Note |
N Particulars No. 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15
! E
I__[Sharcholder's Funds
(A} Share Capital F 100,000 L00,000
(B) Reserve & Surplus (34,655) (36,967)
65,345 63,033
2__ |Non - Current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings 3 62,73.63.003 66,49,20,591
62,73,63,003 66,49,20,591
3 ¢ Liabiliti
(a) Other Current Liabilities 4 35,27.47,702 25,55,30,280
() Short Term Provisions 5 96,322 95,778
35,28,44,024 25,56,26,058
TOTAL 98,02,72,372 92,06,09,682
0. |ASSETS
1__|Non: Current Assets
(A Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible Assets 6 5.20,95,489 5,51,55.233
(i1] Intangible Assets
(i) Capital Work in Progress 7
(B] Long Term loans and advance 8 : -
{0 ) Other Non Current Assets 9 91,58,19,413 B5,03,77,725
96,79,14,902 90,55,32,958
2 lLurrent Assets
{a} Inventories 10 9559126 95,59,126
{a) Cash & Cash Equivalents 11 7.83.648 7.55,195
{b) Other Current Assets 12 20,14,696 47.62.402
TOTAL 1,23,57,470 1,50,76,724
TOTAL 498,02,72,372 92,06,09,682

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Financial Statements
As per our report attached

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn No. 302014E

y :nﬂ““fﬁ

arendra Khandal
riner
No 065025

Place:
Dare:

0.06

For and on behalf of the Board

Di h/ Director



BHOPAL SANCHI HIGHWAYS PVT LTD

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2016

M No 065025

Note
Particulars No. 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Revenue from Operations - 41,70,581
Other Income 13 2,857 1.10.731

Total Income : 2,857 42,81,312
Cost of Sales 14 39,62,051
Works Contracts done .

Total Expenses: - 39,62,051
Profit Before Tax and Extraordinary items 2.857 3,19,261
Provision for Taxation

Current Tax 544 95,778
Deferred Tax -
Net Profit/loss after Tax 2,313 2,213,483
Basic and Diluted EPS (Par Value Rs. 10) 0.23 22.35
Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Financial Statements 1
As per our report attached
For and on behalf of the Board
For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn No. 302014E
5
:/2 / 1 at w{ — Di Director
arendra Khandal b

Partner




IR PAL SANCHT HIGHWAYS PRIVATE LIMITEL
WALANCE SHEET A% AT March %1 3014
NOTES FURMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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__NOTE | 2 AARE CAPITAL E = o

Particutars Al StMaets | 3iMaras |

— v

T 01000 { 1,00, 6001 Egurty Shxres of Ba 10/~ sach 1000000 10.00,000

Tnaued, Subscribed and Paid up capital 100,000 | 1,80,000 |
| 0,800 [10,000) Exmty thares o Bx 005 e 180,000 1.00,000
a) Hevenciliatien of $hares outstanding as af the beginning and rod of the reparting permd

_ Equity Shares
31 Mar 16 11 Mar-15
Mo A st k. Asrsoasrg
10800 100,008 10,800 L0, 00

1.00,000

10000 100,000 10800
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distributinm will b im propoction o v mamber o sgaaty shaees Bbeid by the shareholder,

] Pl of Shareholder's holding more than 5% shares in the company and sharves hold by halding campany

31 -Mar 14 21.Mar15

Ern

_No . B
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Fapialty Shores of s, 10 paid

Prat:bha Induatres l-lmnld-llu!d!gil'_ pany R 1E]] 8,104

51%

B =

Abbyuidaya Housing & Constremared Peslid 4,1 [HE L A9

NOTE S Long Teom Borrowings Heunys 1 1Merls

SECORED AN
Term Losn From Avs Bank LAY IME 5, 18,520

Securiy Detaily

1] Fuewy cnarge fassigniments uf ol Frvemues and receiviebies of the Compary frus the Prosect of mtherwise,

) Faorwe vum Trist s=d Betestion Acconst opesed writh Awrd Bana i wisch all She Rown of the Propor it e depsited. The
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The preject has been delayed and the company has deaws the Tl laas stoaed henoe 1 i in talks jor change af the repaymeni|
wchedule,

Interest i the month af March and partly for February aggreganng to Hs, G000 Lacs 1 payatite as af the reporting date

Further, htalment for the pear amaunsing to Bs, 10232.2% Lacs payable to Axls Mank s per the repayment schedule are is arrears as
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BHOPAL SANCHI HIGHWAYS PVT LTD

ZJ.-,mm 6 : DETAILS OF FIXED ASSETS BHOPAL SANCHI

Gross Block DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
PARTICULARS Asat Additions during| Costasat As at Dkt v Deduction / Asat Asat Asat
01.04.2015 the year 31.03.2016 | 01-Apr-2015 it Adjustments | 31-Mar-2016 | 31-Mar-2016 31-Mar-2015
Plant & Machinery 54066814 - 54066814 2582346 25,89,252 - 51,711,598 48895216 5.14.84. 468
Vehicles 40,88,230 40,88,230 464,926 4,66,208 931,134 31,57.0956 36,23.304
Furniture 63,509 63,509 16,048 4,284 - 20,332 43,177 47.461
5.82,18,553 - 582,18,553 30,63,320 30,59,744 - 61,23,064 5.20,95,489 5.51,55,233




BHOPAL SANCHI HIGHWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

- Amount in .

[PARTICULARS | 31-Mar-16] 31-Mar-15]

A. Cash Flow From Operating activities

Profit before tax and extraordinary items 2857 3.19.261

Adjustments for:

Finance Charges 601,598,754 6,33.69.010

Prefiminary expenses w/folf

Operating Profit belore working capital changes 6,02,01,611 6,16,88,270

Adjustments lor:

Capital Work in progress and Non current Claims
Tangible Assels

Loans, Advances & Corrent Assets

Creditors and Liabilities [including Provisions)

Dirvect Taxes paid
Net Cash used in opearting activities

B. Cash Flow from Investing activites

Purchase f acquisition of fixed assets including additions to Capital Work in
Progress

Net Cash ased in Investing activities

. Cash Flow for Financing Activities
Proceeds from Share Capital

Proceeds from Borrowings (Net)

Finance Charges paid

Net Cash from J used in Finoncing activitics

Met Increase in Cash and Cash Eguivalent

Opening Halance of Cash and Cash Equivalent
Closing Halance of Cash and Cash Equivalent

Notes:

1. The above cash statement has been prépared under the indirect method as described under AS - 3 issued by ICAL

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn No, 302014E

CA Narendra Khandal
Partner
M No 065025

Place:
Date;

(6.23.81.944)
27.47,706
{51.07,658)

(45,40,285)

6.47.67452
(6,01.98.754)

45,68,738
28,453

755,195
7,583,648

For and on behalfl of the Board

(30,62,13,345)
3051,181
408,39 4494
20,60,56,290

1,34,21,840

4.82.97.082
(6.33.69.010)

(1.50,71,927)
[ 16,50,067)

24,05,2483
7.55.195

Director



	Prime Infrapark P Ltd March-16
	Muktangan Developers F-Y 15 -16
	Bhopal Sanchi Audit Report March-16
	Bhopal Sanchi Balance Sheet March-16

